# Final draft ETSI ES 202 786 V1.5.1 (2022-02)



Methods for Testing and Specification (MTS); The Testing and Test Control Notation version 3; TTCN-3 Language Extensions: Support of interfaces with continuous signals

> ETSI ES 202 786 V1.5.1 (2022-02) https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/sist/0ab1ad3a-8761-4b94-ab18-f890330234f3/etsi-es-202-786-v1-5-1-2022-02

# Reference RES/MTS-202786ed151 Keywords interface, testing, TTCN-3

#### **ETSI**

650 Route des Lucioles F-06921 Sophia Antipolis Cedex - FRANCE

Tel.: +33 4 92 94 42 00 Fax: +33 4 93 65 47 16

Siret N° 348 623 562 00017 - APE 7112B Association à but non lucratif enregistrée à la Sous-Préfecture de Grasse (06) N° w061004871

### Important notice

The present document can be downloaded from: http://www.etsi.org/standards-search

The present document may be made available in electronic versions and/or in print. The content of any electronic and/or print versions of the present document shall not be modified without the prior written authorization of ETSI. In case of any existing or perceived difference in contents between such versions and/or in print, the prevailing version of an ETSI deliverable is the one made publicly available in PDF format at <a href="https://www.etsi.org/deliver">www.etsi.org/deliver</a>.

Users of the present document should be aware that the document may be subject to revision or change of status.

Information on the current status of this and other ETSI documents is available at

<a href="https://portal.etsi.org/TB/ETSIDeliverableStatus.aspx">https://portal.etsi.org/TB/ETSIDeliverableStatus.aspx</a>

If you find errors in the present document, please send your comment to one of the following services: <a href="https://portal.etsi.org/People/CommitteeSupportStaff.aspx">https://portal.etsi.org/People/CommitteeSupportStaff.aspx</a>

https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/sist/0ab1ad3a-

8761-469 Notice of disclaimer & limitation of liability 5-1-

The information provided in the present deliverable is directed solely to professionals who have the appropriate degree of experience to understand and interpret its content in accordance with generally accepted engineering or other professional standard and applicable regulations.

No recommendation as to products and services or vendors is made or should be implied.

No representation or warranty is made that this deliverable is technically accurate or sufficient or conforms to any law and/or governmental rule and/or regulation and further, no representation or warranty is made of merchantability or fitness for any particular purpose or against infringement of intellectual property rights.

In no event shall ETSI be held liable for loss of profits or any other incidental or consequential damages.

Any software contained in this deliverable is provided "AS IS" with no warranties, express or implied, including but not limited to, the warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose and non-infringement of intellectual property rights and ETSI shall not be held liable in any event for any damages whatsoever (including, without limitation, damages for loss of profits, business interruption, loss of information, or any other pecuniary loss) arising out of or related to the use of or inability to use the software.

### Copyright Notification

No part may be reproduced or utilized in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, including photocopying and microfilm except as authorized by written permission of ETSI.

The content of the PDF version shall not be modified without the written authorization of ETSI.

The copyright and the foregoing restriction extend to reproduction in all media.

© ETSI 2022. All rights reserved.

# Contents

Intelle	ectual Property Rights	5
Forew	vord	5
Modal	l verbs terminology	5
	Scope	
	•	
	References	
2.1	Normative references	
2.2	Informative references	7
3	Definition of terms, symbols and abbreviations	7
3.1	Terms	7
3.2	Symbols	7
3.3	Abbreviations	7
4	Package conformance and compatibility	7
5	Package concepts for the core language	8
5.0	General	
5.1	Time and Sampling	
5.1.0	General.	
5.1.0		
5.1.2	The now operator	10
5.2	Data streams.	10
5.2.0	Data streams  General  Data Streams: static perspective	10
5.2.1	Data Streams: static perspective	11
5.2.2	Data Streams: dynamic perspective	12
5.2.2.0	Data Streams: dynamic perspective dar ds item ai)  General	12
5.2.2.1	Defining stream port types	12
5.2.2.2	Declaration and instantiation of stream ports	13
5.2.2.3	Declaration and instantiation of stream ports  The Connect and Map operations.  Data Streams: access operations iteh ai/catalog/standards/sist/0ab1ad3a-	14
5.2.3	Data Streams: access operations ten.al/catalog/standards/sist/0a01ad3a-	15
5.2.3.0		
5.2.3.1	1	
5.2.3.2	1 1	
5.2.3.3		
5.2.4	Data Streams: navigation operations	
5.2.4.0		
5.2.4.1 5.2.4.2	1 1	
5.2.4.2 5.2.5	Data Streams: extraction and application operations	
5.2.5 5.2.5.0		
5.2.5.0		
5.2.5.2		
5.2.5.3		
5.2.6	Port control operations	
5.2.7	Stream ports in static configurations	
5.3	The assert statement	
5.4	Control structures for continuous and hybrid behaviour	23
5.4.0	General	
5.4.1	Modes	
5.4.1.0		
5.4.1.1		
5.4.1.1		
5.4.1.1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
5.4.1.1	1	
5.4.1.1	<u>.</u>	
5.4.1.1 5.4.1.2		
5.4.1.2	Definition of invariant diocks	28

5.4.1.3	Definition of the onentry block	
5.4.1.4	Definition of the onexit block	
5.4.1.5	Local predicate symbols in the context of modes	
5.4.1.6	The duration operator	
5.4.2	Atomic modes: the cont statement	
5.4.3	Parallel mode composition: the par statement	32
5.4.4	Sequential mode composition: the seq statement	
5.4.5	Parameterizable modes	
5.4.5.0	General	
5.4.5.1	Parameterizable mode definitions	
5.4.5.2	Mode types (optional)	
5.5	The wait statement	36
6 7	FRI extensions for the package	36
6.0	General	
6.1	Extensions to clause 5.5 of ETSI ES 201 873-5: Communication interface operations	
6.2	Extensions to clause 5.6 of ETSI ES 201 873-5: Platform interface operations	
6.3	Extensions to clause 6.3.2 of ETSI ES 201 873-5: Structured type mapping	
6.3.1	TriConfigurationIdType	
6.3.1.0	General	
6.3.1.1	Methods	
6.4	Extensions to clause 6.5.2.1 of ETSI ES 201 873-5: TriCommunicationSA	
6.5	Extensions to clause 6.5.3.1 of ETSI ES 201 873-5: TriPlatformPA	
6.6	Extensions to clause 6.5.3.2 of ETSI ES 201 873-5: TriPlatformTE	
6.7	Extensions to clause 7.2.1 of ETSI ES 201 873-5: Abstract type mapping	
6.8	Extensions to clause 7.2.4 of ETSI ES 201 873-5. TRI operation mapping.	
6.9	Extensions to clause 8.5.2 of ETSI ES 201 873-5: Abstract data types	
6.9.1	TriConfigurationId	43
6.9.1.0	TriConfigurationId	43
6.9.1.1	Methods	
6.10	Extensions to clause 8.6.1 of ETSI ES 201 873-5: TriCommunicationSA	43
6.11	Extensions to clause 8.6.3 of ETSI ES 201 873-5: TriPlatformPA	
6.12	Extensions to clause 8.6.4 of ETSI ES 201 873-5: TriPlatformTE	44
6.13	Extensions to clause 9.4.2 of ETSI ES 201 873-5: Structured type mapping	
6.13.1	TriConfigurationIdTypendards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/sist/flab1ad3a-	
6.13.1.0	General .8.76.1.4694.a618.f890330234f3/etsj-es-202-786-v1-5-1	44
6.13.1.1		
6.14	Extensions to clause 9.5.2.1 of ETSI ES 201 873-5: ITriCommunicationSA	45
6.15	Extensions to clause 9.5.2.3 of ETSI ES 201 873-5: ITriPlatformPA	45
6.16	Extensions to clause 9.5.2.4 of ETSI ES 201 873-5: ITriPlatformTE	45
7 7	FCI automoione for the moderne	16
	TCI extensions for the package	40
7.1	Extensions to clause 7.3.3.2 of ETSI ES 201 873-6: TCI-CH provided	
7.2	Extensions to clause 7.3.3.1 of ETSI ES 201 873-6: TCI-CH required	
7.3	Extensions to clause 8.5.3.1 of ETSI ES 201 873-6: TCI-CH provided	
7.4	Extensions to clause 8.5.3.2 of ETSI ES 201 873-6: TCI-CH required	
7.5	Extensions to clause 9.4.3.1 of ETSI ES 201 873-6: TCI-CH provided	
7.6 7.7	Extensions to clause 9.4.3.2 of ETSLES 201 873-6: TCI-CH required	
	Extensions to clause 10.6.3.1 of ETSI ES 201 873-6: TciChRequired	
7.8		
7.9	Extensions to clause 12.5.3.1 of ETSI ES 201 873-6: TCI-CH provided	
7.10	Extensions to clause 12.5.3.2 of ETSI ES 201 873-6: TCI-CH required	49
Annex	A (normative): BNF and static semantics	50
A.1 1	New TTCN-3 terminals	50
	Changed BNF Rules	
	New BNF Rules	
Annex	B (informative): Bibliography	53
History	7	54

### Intellectual Property Rights

### **Essential patents**

IPRs essential or potentially essential to normative deliverables may have been declared to ETSI. The declarations pertaining to these essential IPRs, if any, are publicly available for **ETSI members and non-members**, and can be found in ETSI SR 000 314: "*Intellectual Property Rights (IPRs)*; *Essential, or potentially Essential, IPRs notified to ETSI in respect of ETSI standards*", which is available from the ETSI Secretariat. Latest updates are available on the ETSI Web server (https://ipr.etsi.org/).

Pursuant to the ETSI Directives including the ETSI IPR Policy, no investigation regarding the essentiality of IPRs, including IPR searches, has been carried out by ETSI. No guarantee can be given as to the existence of other IPRs not referenced in ETSI SR 000 314 (or the updates on the ETSI Web server) which are, or may be, or may become, essential to the present document.

### **Trademarks**

The present document may include trademarks and/or tradenames which are asserted and/or registered by their owners. ETSI claims no ownership of these except for any which are indicated as being the property of ETSI, and conveys no right to use or reproduce any trademark and/or tradename. Mention of those trademarks in the present document does not constitute an endorsement by ETSI of products, services or organizations associated with those trademarks.

**DECT**<sup>TM</sup>, **PLUGTESTS**<sup>TM</sup>, **UMTS**<sup>TM</sup> and the ETSI logo are trademarks of ETSI registered for the benefit of its Members. **3GPP**<sup>TM</sup> and **LTE**<sup>TM</sup> are trademarks of ETSI registered for the benefit of its Members and of the 3GPP Organizational Partners. **oneM2M**<sup>TM</sup> logo is a trademark of ETSI registered for the benefit of its Members and of the oneM2M Partners. **GSM**<sup>®</sup> and the GSM logo are trademarks registered and owned by the GSM Association.

### **Foreword**

# (standards.iteh.ai)

This final draft ETSI Standard (ES) has been produced by ETSI Technical Committee Methods for Testing and Specification (MTS), and is now submitted for the ETSI standards Membership Approval Procedure. https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/sist/0ab1ad3a-

The use of underline (additional text) and strike through (deleted text) highlights the differences between base document and extended documents.

The present document relates to the multi-part standard ETSI ES 201 873 covering the Testing and Test Control Notation version 3, as identified in ETSI ES 201 873-1 [1].

### Modal verbs terminology

In the present document "shall", "shall not", "should", "should not", "may", "need not", "will", "will not", "can" and "cannot" are to be interpreted as described in clause 3.2 of the <u>ETSI Drafting Rules</u> (Verbal forms for the expression of provisions).

"must" and "must not" are NOT allowed in ETSI deliverables except when used in direct citation.

### 1 Scope

The present document defines the "Continuous Signal support" package of TTCN-3. TTCN-3 can be used for the specification of all types of reactive system tests over a variety of communication ports. Typical areas of application are protocol testing (including mobile and Internet protocols), service testing (including supplementary services), module testing, testing of APIs, etc. TTCN-3 is not restricted to conformance testing and can be used for many other kinds of testing including interoperability, robustness, regression, system and integration testing. The specification of test suites for physical layer protocols is outside the scope of the present document.

TTCN-3 packages are intended to define additional TTCN-3 concepts, which are not mandatory as concepts in the TTCN-3 core language, but which are optional as part of a package which is suited for dedicated applications and/or usages of TTCN-3.

This package defines concepts for testing systems using continuous signals as opposed to discrete messages and the characterization of the progression of such signals by use of **streams**. For both the production as well as the evaluation of continuous signals the concept of **mode** is introduced. Also, the signals can be processed as **history**-traces. Finally, basic mathematical functions that are useful for analyzing such traces are defined for TTCN-3. It is thus especially useful for testing systems which communicate with the physical world via sensors and actuators.

While the design of TTCN-3 package has taken into account the consistency of a combined usage of the core language with a number of packages, the concrete usages of and guidelines for this package in combination with other packages is outside the scope of the present document.

# 2 References iTeh STANDARD

### PREVIEW

2.1 Normative references

References are either specific (identified by date of publication and/or edition number or version number) or non-specific. For specific references, only the cited version applies. For non-specific references, the latest version of the referenced document (including any amendments) applies. 6 V1.5.1 (2022-02)

Referenced documents which are not found to be publicly available in the expected location might be found at <a href="https://docbox.etsi.org/Reference">https://docbox.etsi.org/Reference</a>. 494-ab18-1890330234f3/etsi-es-202-786-v1-5-1-

NOTE: While any hyperlinks included in this clause were valid at the time of publication, ETSI cannot guarantee their long term validity.

The following referenced documents are necessary for the application of the present document.

ε	, 11
[1]	ETSI ES 201 873-1 (V4.9.1): "Methods for Testing and Specification (MTS); The Testing and Test Control Notation version 3; Part 1: TTCN-3 Core Language".
[2]	ETSI ES 201 873-4 (V4.6.1): "Methods for Testing and Specification (MTS); The Testing and Test Control Notation version 3; Part 4: TTCN-3 Operational Semantics".
[3]	ETSI ES 201 873-5 (V4.8.1): "Methods for Testing and Specification (MTS); The Testing and Test Control Notation version 3; Part 5: TTCN-3 Runtime Interface (TRI)".
[4]	ETSI ES 201 873-6 (V4.9.1): "Methods for Testing and Specification (MTS); The Testing and Test Control Notation version 3; Part 6: TTCN-3 Control Interface (TCI)".
[5]	ISO/IEC 9646-1: "Information technology Open Systems Interconnection Conformance testing methodology and framework; Part 1: General concepts".
[6]	ETSI ES 202 785 (V1.3.1): "Methods for Testing and Specification (MTS); The Testing and Test Control Notation version 3; TTCN-3 Language Extensions: Behaviour Types".
[7]	ETSI ES 202 781 (V1.3.1): "Methods for Testing and Specification (MTS); The Testing and Test Control Notation version 3; TTCN-3 Language Extensions: Configuration and Deployment Support".

### 2.2 Informative references

References are either specific (identified by date of publication and/or edition number or version number) or non-specific. For specific references, only the cited version applies. For non-specific references, the latest version of the referenced document (including any amendments) applies.

NOTE: While any hyperlinks included in this clause were valid at the time of publication, ETSI cannot guarantee their long term validity.

The following referenced documents are not necessary for the application of the present document but they assist the user with regard to a particular subject area.

[i.1]	ETSI ES 201 873-7: "Methods for Testing and Specification (MTS); The Testing and Test Control Notation version 3; Part 7: Using ASN.1 with TTCN-3".
[i.2]	ETSI ES 201 873-8: "Methods for Testing and Specification (MTS); The Testing and Test Control Notation version 3; Part 8: The IDL to TTCN-3 Mapping".
[i.3]	ETSI ES 201 873-9: "Methods for Testing and Specification (MTS); The Testing and Test Control Notation version 3; Part 9: Using XML schema with TTCN-3".
[i.4]	ETSI ES 201 873-10: "Methods for Testing and Specification (MTS); The Testing and Test Control Notation version 3; Part 10: TTCN-3 Documentation Comment Specification".
[i.5]	ETSI ES 202 784: "Methods for Testing and Specification (MTS); The Testing and Test Control Notation version 3; TTCN-3 Language Extensions: Advanced Parameterization".
[i.6]	ETSI ES 202 782: "Methods for Testing and Specification (MTS); The Testing and Test Control Notation version 3; TTCN-3 Language Extensions: TTCN-3 Performance and Real Time Testing".

# 3 Definition of terms, symbols and abbreviations

ETSI ES 202 786 V1.5.1 (2022-02)

# 3.1 Terms https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/sist/0ab1ad3a-8761-4b94-ab18-f890330234f3/etsi-es-202-786-v1-5-1-

For the purposes of the present document, the terms given in ETSI ES 201 873-1 [1], ETSI ES 201 873-4 [2], ETSI ES 201 873-5 [3], ETSI ES 201 873-6 [4] and ISO/IEC 9646-1 [5] apply.

### 3.2 Symbols

Void.

### 3.3 Abbreviations

For the purposes of the present document, the abbreviations given in ETSI ES 201 873-1 [1], ETSI ES 201 873-4 [2], ETSI ES 201 873-5 [3], ETSI ES 201 873-6 [4] and ISO/IEC 9646-1 [5] apply.

### 4 Package conformance and compatibility

The package presented in the present document is identified by the package tag:

• "TTCN-3:2012 Support for Testing Continuous Signals" - to be used with modules complying with the present document.

For an implementation claiming to conform to this package version, all features specified in the present document shall be implemented consistently with the requirements given in the present document and in ETSI ES 201 873-1 [1], ETSI ES 201 873-4 [2], ETSI ES 201 873-5 [3] and ETSI ES 201 873-6 [4].

The package presented in the present document is compatible to:

- ETSI ES 201 873-1 (V4.9.1) [1]
- ETSI ES 201 873-4 (V4.6.1) [2]
- ETSI ES 201 873-5 (V4.8.1) [3]
- ETSI ES 201 873-6 (V4.9.1) [4]
- ETSI ES 202 785 (V1.3.1) [6]
- ETSI ES 202 781 (V1.3.1) [7]
- ETSI ES 201 873-7 [i.1]
- ETSI ES 201 873-8 [i.2]
- ETSI ES 201 873-9 [i.3]
- ETSI ES 201 873-10 [i.4]
- ETSI ES 202 784 [i.5]
- ETSI ES 202 782 [i.6]

If later versions of those parts are available and should be used instead, the compatibility to the package presented in the present document has to be checked individually.

### PREVIEW

# 5 Package concepts for the core language

### 5.0 General

### ETSI ES 202 786 V1.5.1 (2022-02)

Systems can communicate its data or signals, either in discrete form (e.g. as an integer value) or in continuous form (e.g. real values). With respect to this difference signals are classified into four categories. The categories distinguish whether the time and value domain of a signal is of discrete or continuous nature:

- Analogue signals are continuous in the time and value domain. Analogue signals are the most 'natural' signal category, characterized by physical units (e.g. current, voltage, velocity) and measured with sensors. Typical examples of the physical quantities used in the area of embedded system development are the vehicle velocity, the field intensity of a radio station etc. Analogue signals can be described as a piecewise function over time (e.g. vx = f(t)).
- 2) Time quantified signals are discrete signals in the time domain. The signal values are defined only at predetermined time points (sampling points). Typical examples of time quantified signals are the time-value pairs of a recorded signal. A typical representation of a time quantified signal is a series or an array of real numbers. Even if the original signal is a synthetic function it can only be reconstructed from a time quantified signal with considerable mathematical effort.
- 3) Value quantified signals are time-continuous signals with discrete values. Typical examples of a value quantified signal are data that are derived from analogue signals and which are dedicated to further processing, e.g. an A/D converted sensor signal that is provided to an electrical control unit.
- 4) Digital signals are discrete on the time and value domain. If the set of possible signal values includes only two elements, one speaks about binary signals. Typical examples of binary signals are switching positions or flags.

Thus on a theoretical level, continuous and discrete evolution of time and values have to be distinguished. In a discrete system, the changes of states are processed at fixed and finite time steps. In a continuous system state changes occur for infinitesimally small time steps. Important mathematical models for continuous systems are ordinary differential equations. A mixed system, which shows continuous and discrete dynamics, is known as a hybrid system. Hybrid systems can be modelled with hybrid automatons. Examples for systems that show such variable dynamics are often found in the area of embedded control systems e.g. in the automotive and aircraft industry.

In the general case, a test description notation for embedded software systems shall support all of four categories of signals mentioned above. TTCN-3 currently supports the signal categories 2) and 4). The extension of the language with respect to a support of the signal categories 1) and 3) is the content of the present document.

TTCN-3 is a procedural testing language, thus test behaviour is defined by algorithms that typically send messages to ports and receive messages from ports. For the evaluation of different alternatives of expected messages, or timeout events, the port queues and the timeout queues are frozen when the evaluation starts. This kind of snapshot semantics guarantees a consistent view on the test system input during an individual evaluation step. Whereas the snapshot semantics provides means for a pseudo parallel evaluation of messages from several ports, there is no notion of simultaneous stimulation and time triggered evaluation. To enhance the core language to the requirements of continuous and hybrid behaviour the following are introduced:

- the notions of time and sampling;
- the notions of streams, stream ports and stream variables;
- the definition of an automaton alike control flow structure to support the specification of hybrid behaviour.

### 5.1 Time and Sampling

### 5.1.0 General

The TTCN-3 extensions defined in this package adopt the concept of a global clock and enhance it with the notion of sampling and sampled time. As in TTCN-3, all time values are denoted as float values and represent time in seconds. For sampling, simple equidistant sampling models as well as dynamic sampling models are supported.

On technical level an equidistant sampling model of the form t=k\*bdelta, where t describes the time progress, d specifies the number of executed sampling steps and, bdelta yields the minimal achievable step size for a given test system, is used as an overall basis to model equidistant samplings with larger step size or dynamic sampling.

The basic sampling with its minimal step size bdelta is a property of a concrete test system and not intended to be specified as part of the test case specification. However, as a consequence of this underlying model, a test system is able to execute user defined samplings if and only if all specified sampling rates at test specification level provide step sizes that are multiples of bdeltaps://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/sist/0ablad3a-

8761-4b94-ab18-f890330234f3/etsi-es-202-786-v1-5-1-

When using the TTCN-3 extension defined in this package, each reference to time, either used for the definition and evaluation of signals but as well by means of ordinary TTCN-3 timers, is considered to be completely synchronized to the global clock and the base sampling.

### 5.1.1 The now operator

For the specification of time-dependent signal sequences, it is necessary to be able to track the passage of time. The access of time is guaranteed by a globally available clock whose current value can be accessed by means of the **now** operator. Time progress starts at the beginning of each test case execution, thus time values are related to the start of the test case execution.

### Syntactical Structure

now

### Semantic Description

Evaluation of the **now** operator yields the current value of the clock which is the duration of time since the start of the currently running test case.

### Restrictions

The **now** operator shall only be applied from within a test case, i.e. by test cases, functions and altsteps executed on test components. The **now** operator shall neither directly nor indirectly be called by TTCN-3 control part.

#### Example

### **EXAMPLE:**

```
// Use of now to retrieve the actual time since the test case has started
var float actualTime := now;
```

### 5.1.2 Define the default step size for sampling

For sampling, a globally valid base sampling rate defined by the test system is provided. In addition, sampling rates can be set separately and as part of the test specification by means of **stepsize** attribute.

### Syntactic Structure

```
stepsize StepSizeValue
```

### Semantic Description

The **StepSizeValue** is a string-literal which shall contain a decimal number. This number interpreted as seconds is used as the default rate of sampling values over the stream ports to which are affected by this **stepsize** attribute. The actual sampling rate of a specific port can be changed dynamically with the **delta** operation.

#### Restrictions

A **stepsize** attribute can only appear in a with-annotation. A **stepsize** attribute can be applied to individual modules, test cases, groups, component types and stream port types and effects either the statements that are contained in one of these entities or in case of component types and stream port types the respective instances.

### **Examples**

### **PREVIEW**

```
EXAMPLE 1:

// sets the stepsize for amodule module myModule {

...
} with {stepsize " 0.0001" } TSI ES 202 786 V1.5.1 (2022-02)

EXAMPLE 2:

https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/sist/0ablad3a-
8761-4b94-ab18-f890330234f3/etsi-es-202-786-v1-5-1-
// sets the stepsize for a testcase
testcase myTestcase() runs on myComponent {

...
} with {stepsize " 0.0001" };

EXAMPLE 3:

// sets the stepsize for all instances of the port type StreamOut
type port StreamOut stream { out float} with {stepsize " 0.0001" };
```

### 5.2 Data streams

### 5.2.0 General

In computer science the term data stream is used to describe a continuous or discrete sequence of data. Normally the length of a stream cannot be established in advance. The data rate, i.e. the number of samples per time unit, can vary. Data streams are continuously processed and are particularly suited to represent dynamically evolving variables over a course of time. Thus, streams are an ideal representation of the different discrete and continuous signals mentioned in the beginning of clause 5.

While in standard TTCN-3 interactions between the test components and the SUT are realized by sending and receiving messages through ports, the interaction between continuous systems can be represented by means of so called streams. In contrast to scalar values, a stream represents the whole allocation history applied to a port. In computer science, streams are widely used to describe finite or infinite data flows. To represent the relation to time, so called timed streams are used. Timed streams additionally provide timing information for each stream value and thus enable the traceability of timed behaviour. The TTCN-3 extension defined by this package provides timed streams. In the following, the term measurement (record) to denote the unity of a stream value and the related timing in timed streams will be used. Thus, concerning the recording of continuous data, a measurement record represents an individual measurement, consisting of a stream value that represents the data side and timing information that represents the temporal perspective of such a measurement.

In this TTCN-3 extension, two different but not complementary representations of timed data streams are introduced. The term timed considers the fact that the time and value domain of a signal are of interest. As a consequence, a stream is considered to consist of a sequence of samples. Each sample provides information about the timing and the value perspective of the sample:

- Static perspective: The static perspective provides a direct mapping between a timed stream and the TTCN-3 data structures **record** and **record** of. This kind of mapping is referred to below as the static representation of a data stream and allows random access to all elements of the data stream.
- Dynamic perspective: To provide dynamic online access to data streams, the existing concepts of TTCN-3 port type and port are extended to provide access to data streams and their content. A so called stream port references exactly one data stream and provides access to the dynamically changing values of the referenced data stream.

NOTE: To represent streams in the present document, a tabular notation is used. The table has two rows by which the first one represents the value perspective of a stream and the second represents the temporal perspective. The temporal perspective is defined by means of timestamps that are synchronized with the overall clock. The columns represent the samples of the stream.

### **EXAMPLE:**

## (standards.iteh.ai)

<u>Value</u>	1.2	1.4	1.5	1.7	1.7	1.5	1.2	1.0	1.1	1.4	1.5	1.2	1.0	1.1	1.4
Timestamp	0	0.1	0.2	0.3	0.4		0.6	0.7	0.8	0.9	1.0	1.1	1.2	1.3	1.4
		$\mathbf{F}'$	TQI	EC 2	02.7	26 V	1.5	1.(20)	$\mathcal{O}$	12)					

https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/sist/0ab1ad3a-The example shows a stream with the length of 1.4 seconds and float values that change between 1.0 and 1.5.

### Data Streams: static perspective 5.2.1

A TTCN-3 data stream can be mapped directly to existing TTCN-3 data structures. The mapping considers each stream to be represented by means of a TTCN-3 record of data structure. This structure itself consists of individual entities, so called samples, each sample representing either a measurement on an incoming stream or stimulus that is dedicated to be applied to an outgoing stream.

A sample itself is represented by means of a TTCN-3 **record** data structure. The record consists of two fields. It has two fields of type **float**. The first field with the name value represents what is called the value of a stream. Its data type should be aligned with the data type of the corresponding stream. The second field denotes the temporal perspective of a sample. It denotes the temporal distance to the preceding sample (the sampling step size delta). The second field is of type **float** and represents time values that have the physical unit second. Example 1 shows the exemplary definition of a data structure to specify individual samples.

#### EXAMPLE 1:

```
type record Sample {
      float value,
      float delta
```

Given such a structure, a timed data stream of an arbitrary data type is modelled as a record of samples.

### **EXAMPLE 2:**

```
type record of Sample MyStreamType;
```

The static representation of data streams can be used for the online and offline evaluation of streams as well as for the piecewise in-memory definition of streams or stream templates, which are to be applied to stream ports in the subsequent test case execution. Thus, the static representation of streams can be used to assess incoming streams and to define outgoing or reference streams and template streams mostly by means of ordinary TTCN-3 operations and control structures and as such provide an ideal interface between ordinary TTCN-3 concepts and the concepts defined in this package. Example 3 shows a short specification of a sampled stream.

#### EXAMPLE 3:

If the stream definition from above is applied to an outgoing stream port directly with the beginning of a test case, the result will look as follows.

#### **EXAMPLE 4:**

Value	0.0	0.0	0.2	0.1	0.0
Timestamp	0	0.1	0.3	0.4	0.7

Each stream port is initialized with a value that defines the valuation of a stream at time 0.0. Thus the first sample in Example 4 is not defined by the specification in example 3 but by the base initialization of the stream port.

- NOTE 1: In order to create larger streams a manual specification approach is not feasible. In this case, the data processing capabilities of TTCN-3 can be used. This allows to programmatically/algorithmically construct the dedicated record structures.
- NOTE 2: The data structures presented in this clause serve for illustration purposes only. They show how timed data streams can be mapped to standard TTCN-3 data structures and thus can be processed easily by using the existing TTCN-3 language features and operators. The TTCN-3 extensions provided in this package do not include type declarations from above.

# 5.2.2 Data Streams: dynamic perspective dards/sist/0ab1ad3a-

8761-4b94-ab18-f890330234f3/etsi-es-202-786-v1-5-1-

eral 2022-02

### 5.2.2.0 General

2022-02

In standard TTCN-3 ports are used for the communication among test components and between test components and the SUT. To be able to initiate, modify and evaluate a stream based communication between the entities of a test system, this package extends the concepts of standard TTCN-3 port types and ports with the notion of *stream-based communication* and *stream ports*. Stream ports are the endpoints of a stream based communication. Thus stream ports in TTCN-3 embedded are used to provide access to streams, their values and the respective timing information. A stream port references exactly one data stream and thus provides access to the respective stream values and timing information.

### 5.2.2.1 Defining stream port types

The TTCN-3 port concept of message-based and procedure-based ports is extended with stream-based ports. Stream ports support stream-based communication.

### Syntactical Structure

```
type port PortTypeIdentifier stream "{"
    { ( ( in | out | inout ) StreamValueType [";"] )
      ( map param "(" { FormalValuePar [","] }+ ")" [";"] ) |
      ( unmap param "(" { FormalValuePar [","] }+ ")" [";"] ) }
"}"
```

#### Semantic Description

Stream port types shall be declared by using the keyword **stream**. Stream ports are directional. The directions are specified by the keywords **in** (for the in direction), **out** (for the out direction) and **inout** (for both directions).

The specified *StreamValueType* references the type of values which can be sent or received (depending on the direction of the port) over ports of the type *PortTypeIdentifier*.

Like message and procedure ports, stream ports can use map and unmap parameters to pass additional information to the system adapter.

#### Restrictions

Each stream port type definition shall have one and only one entry indicating the allowed type together with the allowed communication direction:

- a) Stream port type definition shall always contain exactly one stream value definition.
- b) At most one map parameter list should be defined for a port type.
- c) At most one unmap parameter list should be defined for a port type.

#### Example

#### **EXAMPLE:**

```
// Stream-based port which allows stream values of type float to be received
type port StreamIn stream { in float }

//Stream-based port which allows stream values of type float to be sent
type port StreamOut stream { out float }

//Stream-based port with map and unmap parameter definitions
type port StreamOut stream {
    in float;
    map param (integer p_parl, integer p_par2);
    unmap param (integer p_parl);
}

(Standards.iteh.ai)
```

### 5.2.2.2 Declaration and instantiation of stream ports

The declaration of stream-based ports is similar to the declaration of message-based and procedure-based ports. The component type declares which/ports are associated/with a component. A component type can have ports with different communication characteristics (e.g. stream-based ports, message-based ports, and procedure based). All ports are instantiated together with the component that owns the port, i.e. when the component is created.

Outgoing stream ports start to emit stream values directly after the component, which contains the respective stream port, has been started. The same applies for incoming stream ports. They start receiving data directly after their component has been started. Both incoming and outgoing stream ports are updated for each sampling step. If no explicit step size is defined by means of step size annotations on module level, test case level, port type level, etc. the port is initially sampled with the test systems' base sampling, which is the smallest available step size.

Outgoing stream ports may already be initialized before its first use, so that their values before the start of their component are defined. The initialization occurs in the context of their declaration.

Outgoing stream ports, when they are not explicitly initialized, are automatically initialized with implicit default values. The implicit default values for the various TTCN-3 basic data types can be found in table 1.

Table 1

1	float	at integer boolean		charstring	bitstring	octetstring		
	0.0	0	FALSE	" "	'0'B	'00'0		

The initial stream port value for outgoing stream port applies to the time point 0.0 and for the following sample steps as long as no other stream value is set. The value initialization for incoming streams is in responsibility of the data provider. Hence either the system adapter or the emitting component (in case of a PTC) is responsible to initialize the streams.

#### Syntactical Structure

```
port StreamPortTypeReference
{ StreamPortIdentifier [ ":=" StreamDefaultValue ] [","] }+ [";"]
```

### Semantic Description

A stream port *PortInstance* named *StreamPortIdentifier* is declared inside a component type definition using a *StreamPortTypeReference* which is a type-reference expression for an existing stream port type. Optionally, a *StreamDefaultValue* can be supplied which defines the value of the stream before the first sampling over this port.

#### Restrictions

The *StreamDefaultValue* shall be of the type *StreamValueType* in the port type definition referenced by *StreamPortTypeReference*.

### **Examples**

#### **EXAMPLE 1:**

### 5.2.2.3 The Connect and Map operations

Stream ports can be mapped and connected. The syntax and general rules for the map and connect operations are described in ETSI ES 201 873-1: [1]tandards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/sist/0ab1ad3a-

8761-4b94-ab18-f890330234f3/etsi-es-202-786-v1-5-1-

Restrictions 2022-02

In addition to the general static rules of TTCN-3 given in clauses 9 and 21.1 of ETSI ES 201 873-1 [1], the following restrictions apply:

- a) Stream ports can be connected or mapped to stream ports only. Connection or mapping between a stream port and a message port is not allowed.
- b) Assuming the following:
  - 1) Ports PORT1 and PORT2 are the stream ports to be connected or mapped;
  - 2) Inval-PORT1 defines the value type of the in-direction of PORT1;
  - 3) Outval-PORT1defines the value type of the out-direction of PORT1;
  - 4) Inval-PORT2 defines the value type of the in-direction of PORT2; and
  - 5) Outval-PORT2 defines the value type of the out-direction of PORT2; and
  - 6) If no value type is defined for a direction, the value type is considered to be undefined. When checking conditions for stream port connecting and mapping, the undefined type is equal to the undefined type only.
- c) The **connect** operation is allowed if and only if:

```
outval-PORT1 = inval-PORT2 and outval-PORT2 = inval-PORT1
```

d) The map operation is allowed if and only if:

```
outval-PORT1 = outval-PORT2 and inval-PORT2 = inval-PORT1
```

- e) In all other cases, the connect and map operations shall not be allowed.
- f) Incoming stream ports of test components and outgoing stream ports of the system adapter cannot be connected or mapped to more than one port.

NOTE: The restriction on the number of connected and mapped ports does not apply to outgoing stream ports of test components and incoming ports of the system adapter, making stream broadcast possible.

### 5.2.3 Data Streams: access operations

### 5.2.3.0 General

Similar to *message-based* and *procedure-based* communication incoming streams can be examined and outgoing streams can be controlled. In general, access to the actual sample of a stream (i.e. the stream value, the respective timing and sampling information) is provided by means of *stream data operations*. Moreover, access to the preceding samples by means of dedicated *navigation operations* is provided. Last but not least, record structured stream data can be extracted as explained in clause 5.2.1 by means of *stream evaluation statements*.

In contrast to message-based and procedure-based communication, *stream data operations* and *stream navigation operations* on expression level have been integrated. This allows testers to directly assign values to streams and read values from streams by means of ordinary TTCN-3 assignments.

### 5.2.3.1 The value operation **PREVIEW**

Each data stream connected to a stream port allows accessing its current value by means of the **value** operation. In case of incoming streams, the value operation yields the actual value that is available at a stream port.

#### Syntactical Structure

```
( StreamPortReference | StreamPortSamp10Reference | 5.1 (2021-02). https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/sist/0ab1ad3a-Semantic Description 8761-4b94-ab18-f890330234f3/etsi-es-202-786-v1-5-1-
```

The **value** operation can be applied to either a *StreamPortReference* expression or a *StreamPortReference* expression which is yielded by the application of a navigation operation on a *StreamPortReference*. In the first case, it yields the current value of the stream port; in the second case it yields the value in the referenced sampling.

When using a StreamPortReference to an outgoing stream port, the **value** operation expression can also be used on the left hand side of an assignment or as an out parameter to a function.

When using a **value** operation expression as a value expression the type of the value is the StreamValueType of the referenced stream port.

If the value operation is used for setting the actual output value of a stream, the effectiveness of the stream port evaluation is delayed. A value, which has been assigned to a stream port value handle, becomes effective inside and outside the component at the beginning of the next sampling step.

#### Restrictions

If the **value** operation expression is used as the target of an assignment, the type of the assigned value shall be compatible with the StreamValueType of the referenced stream port.

### **Examples**

### **EXAMPLE 1:**

```
// accessing the actual input value of a stream
var float myVar:=streamInPort.value;
```